
    

 
Notice of a public meeting of 

Decision Session - Executive Member for Environment 
 
To: Councillor Waller (Executive Member) 

 
Date: Monday, 9 April 2018 

 
Time: 5.30 pm 

 
Venue: The Auden Room - Ground Floor, West Offices (G047) 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Notice to Members – Post Decision Calling In: 
 
Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* on 
this agenda, notice must be given to Democratic Services by 4:00 pm 
on Wednesday 11 April 2018. 
  
*With the exception of matters that have been the subject of a 
previous call in, require Full Council approval or are urgent which are 
not subject to the call-in provisions. Any called in items will be 
considered by the Corporate and Scrutiny Management Policy and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

 
Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be 
submitted to Democratic Services by at 5.00 pm on Thursday, 5 April 
2018. 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point in the meeting, the Executive Member is asked to 

declare: 

 any personal interests not included on the Register of 
Interests 

 any prejudicial interests or 

 any disclosable pecuniary interests 
which he might have in respect of business on this agenda. 



 

 
2. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak at the meeting can do so.  The 
deadline for registering is at 5.00pm on Friday 6 April 2018. 
 
Members of the public may register to speak on an item on the 
agenda or an issue within the Executive Member’s remit. 
 
Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings 
Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will 
be filmed and webcast, or recorded, including any registered 
public speakers who have given their permission. The broadcast 
can be viewed at http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts or, if 
recorded, this will be uploaded onto the Council’s website 
following the meeting. 
 
Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors 
and Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This 
includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting. Anyone 
wishing to film, record or take photos at any public meeting 
should contact the Democracy Officer (whose contact details are 
at the foot of this agenda) in advance of the meeting. 
 
The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of 
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a 
manner both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all 
those present. It can be viewed at: 
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_f
or_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_201
60809.pdf 
 

3. Corporate Energy and Environmental Activity 
Update   

(Pages 1 - 12) 

 The report details progress delivering against the council’s Carbon 
and Resource Smart Management objectives (CRSM), with particular 
reference to carbon reduction, energy use and waste reduction. 
 
This agenda has been republished to include the report for item 3 
which was marked to follow when the agenda was published on 28 
March 2018. 
 
 

http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf


 

4. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Executive Member considers 

urgent under the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Democracy Officer: 
Fiona Young 
Telephone No- 01904 552030 
Email- fiona.young@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
 

   

 
Executive Member for Environment Decision 
Session 
 

            9 April 2018 

Report of the Director of Economy and Place 
Executive Member for the Environment and Deputy Leader, City of 
York Council 
 
Delivering the council’s Carbon and Resource Smart Management 
objectives 2015–2019 
 
Summary 
 

1. The report details progress delivering against the council’s Carbon and 
Resource Smart Management objectives (CRSM), with particular 
reference to carbon reduction, energy use and waste reduction. 

 
2. The CRSM is designed to drive delivery towards a low carbon, 

resource smart ‘One Planet Council’ in line with Council Plan 
commitments to reduce emissions, be resource efficient and ‘put 
sustainability at the heart of everything we do’.   

 
Recommendations 
 

3. The Executive Member is asked to note: 
 

I. Progress being made delivering the CRSM and ongoing alignment 
with the emerging Leeds City Region Energy Plan 

II. Plans to refresh the carbon baseline in 2019/20 
 

Reason:  So that the Executive Member is aware of the progress 
being made and are able to scrutinise performance in this area.  

 
Headline messages: 

4. In 2014/15 the council generated just over 15,0001 tonnes of carbon 
dioxide across our corporate estate and street lighting. This baseline 

                                            
1 Excluding gas consumption (CYC has been unable to obtain gas consumption for 2014/15 from british 
Gas due to errors on their side) 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



 

will be fully updated again in 2019/20.  The council spent over £5 
million on energy, water, transport fuel and waste with over 35 per 
cent of this spend relating to corporate utilities (gas, electricity, water, 
waste). 
 

5. Forty one of 91 short term projects in the CRSM have been 
completed. These projects in the areas of corporate utilities, street 
lighting and school utilities have contributed to a drop in carbon 
emissions, although quantifying the precise impact is difficult to 
quantify and some of the sites have since left the council’s estate.  
Four medium and nine long term projects as part of the CRSM are 
expected to contribute to a further decline in carbon emissions.  

 
6. Since 2010/11, the council’s carbon footprint has declined 26% from 

25,722 tonnes to 19,003 tonnes in 2016/17. The decline is largely 
attributed to street lighting refurbishments and changes to building, 
fleet transport, business travel and waste.  

 
7. CO2 emissions from buildings utilities have declined 19.3% from 

16,663,792 kg CO2e to 13,443,779 kg CO2e. This is due to retrofit 
works such as installation of LED lighting, new energy management 
systems, improved wall insulation and windows. 

 
8. Electricity consumption has declined significantly.  Between 2010/11 

and 2016/17 consumption fell 34.3% from 8,755,397 kWh to 5,749,201 
kWh. Because of this drop in consumption we are now spending 
£275,000 a year less than we otherwise would have done. 

 
9. The council will work closely with Leeds City Region to ensure the 

CRSM is fully aligned to opportunities emerging out of the LCR Energy 
Review. 

 
10. Total miles travelled by car declined 37.5% from 1,163,857 to 727,513 

in 2015/16. Total kilometres travelled by rail declined 7% from 
671,957km to 626,663. 

 
11. Corporate waste has declined 20.3% 

 
12. The following details progress within distinct service areas. 

 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

Housing 
 

Council homes 
 
13. In 2017/2018 thirty nine properties were installed with glazing, loft 

insulation and cavity wall insulation and 235 doors were replaced 
improving the heat insulation in each property.  
 

14. From February 2017 – April 2018 a total of 665 gas boilers were 
replaced and 29 oil heating systems were replaced with air source 
heat pumps. 

 
15. In the next year there are projects in place to further improve the 

energy efficiency of homes.  A total of £500k will be spent on various 
efficiency improvements, including upgrades of commercial boilers 
across some of our key sheltered housing schemes at Glen Lodge, 
Barstow House and Lincoln Court.  

 
16. Boiler replacements are currently programmed on a 13 year cycle.  

Over the next 5 years 600 boilers will be replaced each year at a cost 
of £6,890,000.  The boilers have enhanced performance and 
maximise energy performance.  

 
17. There are plans to upgrade the energy efficiency of properties with 

un-insulated tile hung facades with cavity wall and/or loft insulation in 
the 5 year investment programme at Field View/Haughton Road. This 
will include re-roofing and insulation, replacement/insulation of 
hanging tiles and the renewal of overhanging canopies.  

 
18. Between 2019 and 2021 first-generation PVC windows will be 

replaced at Bell Farm and Chapelfields. In total 382 properties will 
have their windows upgraded with a total budget of £746,000 in the 
CRAM bid. 

 
19. There are plans to survey four blocks in Ancress Walk area in order 

to install cavity and loft insulation where required. 
  

Private sector homes 
 

20. A number of energy efficiency schemes are in place in the private 
sector to support residents in improving the energy efficiency of their 
homes. This results in a reduction in carbon, as better insulated 
homes require less heating.  

Page 3



 

 

 2017/2018 Warm Homes: first time gas central heating systems to 
private sector fuel poor households with National Grid funding.  

 2016/2018 Local Growth Fund Fuel Poverty Scheme: grants for 
insulation to private sector fuel poor households and loans for 
boiler replacement to private sector fuel poor households (Leeds 
City Region LEP funding). 

 Better Homes York: Council-endorsed energy efficiency scheme 
set up to help homeowners, private tenants and private landlords 
across the city. The scheme aims to create warmer, healthier 
homes and to reduce the cost of fuel bills by providing grants to 
homes with low energy efficiency rating and household incomes 
less than £35,000 per year.  

 
Buildings & Renewable Energy Generation 
 

21. Overall emissions from buildings utilities have declined 19.3% from 
16,663,792 kg CO2e to 13,443,779 kg CO2e since 2010/11. This is 
due to retrofit works such as installation of LED lighting, energy 
management systems, wall insulation and new windows. 
 

22. Completed projects 2016/17 and 2017/2018 include: 
 

 Piccadilly Car Park – replacement of lighting with LED in a multi 
storey Car Park including replacing the light fitting, saved 
113616kWh  

 Community equipment loan store – LED lighting upgrade – flood 
lighting replaced with LED saving 37443 kWh 

 Acomb Primary School – LED lighting upgrade to school – compact 
fluorescent replaced with LED saving 26514 kWh 

 Haxby Hall – Replacement LED lighting scheme – compact 
fluorescent replaced with LED including new fitting, saving 
42065kWh 

 Clifton Library – compact fluorescent lighting replaced with LED 
including a new lighting fitting, saving 10366kWh completed. 
 

23. A full list of projects can be found at Annex A. 
 

24. Planned projects 2018/19 include: 
 

 Huntington school – plans to upgrade various old style lighting with 
LED lighting 

Page 4



 

 Various libraries – plans to upgrade current lighting to LED 
following the success of Clifton Library 

 Burnholme Hub – new build/refurbishment, due to be completed in 
May 2018, includes 100% LED lighting. It is anticipated to generate 
13860 kWh per annum 

 Former Burnholme School – Sports Centre refurbishment due to 
commence in Autumn 2018 with improvements to insulation and 
energy efficiency 

 Guildhall – new build/refurbishment due to start Easter 2018 will 
include new electrics, heating, roof and river source heat pump. 

 
25. Projects currently being explored but not yet commissioned include: 

 

 LED lighting over some of the pools and office buildings at Energise 
using Salix funding  

 LED flood lighting at Hazel Court using £26,795 Salix funding 

 LED lighting at Clifton Green Primary School - currently in 
governors’ hands. 

 Possible expansion of solar PV at Hazel Court – if £50k is spent on 
expansion this would generate approximately 28,000kWh in the first 
year, reducing electricity bills and saving 12,500kg CO2e. 

 York Community Energy (YCE) to fund solar PV at Amy Johnson 
Way – this does not require any investment from CYC as we lease 
the roof space to YCE for free or a minimal fee and benefit from 
cheaper electricity.  

 
Transport 
 

City of York Council Business travel  
 
26. Total miles travelled by car declined by 37.5% from 1,163,857 in 

2010/11 to 727,513 in 2015/16. Total kilometres travelled by rail 
declined by 7% from 671,957km in 2010/11 to 626,663 in 2015/16. 
 

27. There are a few changes at the corporate level which have led to this 
decline: 

 

 Reduction in fuel allowances given to staff with the intention of 
encouraging public transport and cycling 

 Consolidation of many different offices into West Offices at the start 
of 2013/14 

 Introduction of the council wide pool car service 

Page 5



 

 Reduction in overall staffing levels 
  
 City of York Council Fleet 
 

28. Overall emissions from fleet transport fuel have fallen by 20.5% from 
3,164,377kg in 2010/11 to 2,515,276kg in 2016/17. 
 

 Telematic systems are being expanded across all fleet vehicles to 
help identify uneconomic driving practices and encourage 
behaviour change. 

 Diesel is being bought in bulk and adblue additive mixed in to 
reduce nitrogen oxide emissions in order to comply with Euro 6 
regulations, 15 new vehicles are due to be added to the fleet in the 
next 3-9 months and all require adblue. 

 Increase in use of efficient vehicles and decrease in the total 
number of vehicles used. 

 Parking services are expected to procure at least three electric 
vans in the coming months. 

 
 Transport in Domestic Waste Services  

 
29. Route optimisation has made the domestic waste collection round 

more efficient and this has resulted in a reduction in the number of 
recycling collection vehicles which are used to collect recycling in the 
city. 

  
30. Four old FAME vehicles (caged vehicles) have been replaced with 2 

new ‘one-pass’ recycling vehicles of the latest spec. The new 
vehicles are bigger than the four they have replaced and are also 
compacting the recycling.  

 
31. These factors have resulted in a more efficient service utilising 

vehicles which do not need to be emptied as frequently throughout 
the working day, so less fuel is consumed making trips to unload.  

 
32. All vehicle/fleet procurement now must include consideration of 

alternative vehicle/engine types as part of that process, for example 
electric or duel fuel vehicles.  

 
Highways and Street lighting 
 

33. There are metered and unmetered street lights across the city for 
which CYC are responsible for paying the electricity bills. This 

Page 6



 

includes street lights, feeder pillars, pedestrian crossings, variable 
message signs and traffic lights. 
 

34. Overall electricity consumption and associated emissions have been 
declining significantly in recent years. Between 2010/11 and 2016/17 
electricity consumption fell 34.3% from 8,755,397 kWh to 5,749,201 
kWh.  

 
35. Because of this drop in consumption we are now emitting around 

1,100 tonnes of CO2e and spending £275,000 a year less than we 
otherwise would have been. 
  

36. This drop in consumption over time can be attributed to: 
 

 Installation of the photo-electric cell unit at the Eco Depot to 
monitor and assess streetlight switching times enabled a 
conversion from passive to dynamic half-hourly billing 

 The programme of converting street lighting to LEDs has reduced 
the council’s carbon emissions by a third and remains ongoing 

 Conversion from filament to LED lighting 

 Reduced lighting between 12am and 6am by 60%, up to 75% on 
arterial roads. 
 

37. These street lighting refurbishments have made a major contribution 
to the overall decline in the council’s carbon footprint in recent years. 
 

38. Recently a £2 million refurbishment programme has been 
announced. Over the course of the next four years the work to 
replace sodium lights with LEDs will continue; 2,000 new steel and 
concrete columns will be installed and maintenance checks will be 
carried out on 12,000 columns. 

 
Waste Services 
 
 Corporate waste 
 

39. Corporate waste has declined by 20.3% in recent years, from 684 
tonnes in 2012/13 to 545 tonnes in 2016/17. Of the waste produced 
in 2018/2017 27% was recycled. 
 

40. This fall in corporate waste over time can be attributed to: 
 

 Rationalisation of council buildings 

Page 7



 

 Installation of recycling bins in West Offices for paper, cardboard, 
glass, plastic and cans 

 Double-sided printing policy in West Offices 
 

41. Waste collected from schools has declined by 28.1% from 1,055 
tonnes in 2012/13 to 758 tonnes in 2016/17. 34% of the 758 tonnes 
of waste collected from schools was recycled.  
 

42. This fall in schools waste is mainly due to academisation but 
behaviour change and installation of recycling facilities will have also 
contributed partially. 
 

 Domestic waste 
 

43. The new waste processing facility at Allerton Park is now in its 
commissioning phase. Over the next 12 months we will move away 
from landfill of residual waste to sending our residual waste through 
this facility. This includes: 
 

 Mechanical treatment plant receives waste and sorts out metal, 
paper, card, glass and plastics for recycling  

 An anaerobic digestion plant treats the separated organic waste 
and produces a biogas which will generate renewable electricity 

 Energy from the waste plant treats the waste which remains after 
separation of the recyclables and treatment of organic waste, 
producing steam to feed an electricity generating turbine that will 
produce enough electricity to supply about 40,000 homes.  

 
Corporate strategy and city partnerships 

 
44. In March 2018 the council signalled its ongoing commitment to 

carbon reduction and resource efficiency by taking part in Earth Hour.  
Lights were dimmed or turned off across many landmark buildings 
including York City Walls, Mansion House, Guildhall, West Offices 
and Cliffords Tower.  This was in partnership with other organisations 
within the One Planet York network such as York Minster.   

 
Consultation  

 
45. This report is based on updates received by officers in various City of 

York Council service areas. 
 

 

Page 8



 

Options  
 
46. Not applicable.  Report is an update of progress to date and future 

plans. 
  

Analysis 
 

47. Not applicable. Report is an update of progress to date and future 
plans. 
 

Council Plan 
 

48. This report shows progress delivering the CRSM that makes a direct 
contribution to the following corporate objectives: 

 

 A prosperous city for all - where local businesses can thrive 
and residents have good quality jobs, housing and opportunities 

 A focus on frontline services - to ensure all residents, 
particularly the least advantaged, can access reliable services 
and community facilities 

 
Implications 
 

 Financial: There are no financial implications associated with this 
report.   

 Human Resources (HR): There are no HR implications associated 
with this report.   

 Equalities: There are no equalities implications associated with this 
report.   

 Legal: There are no legal implications associated with this report.   
 Crime and Disorder:  There are no crime and disorder implications 

associated with this report.   
 Information Technology (IT): There are no IT implications 

associated with this report.   
 Other: There are no implications associated with this report.   

 
Risk Management 

 
49. No known risks associated with this report 

 
 
 

Page 9



 

Contact Details: 
 
 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the 
report: 

Paul McCabe  
Strategic manager 
01904 554527 
 
 

Neil Ferris 
Director of Economy and Place 
 

Report 
Approved 

 Date 29/03/2018 

 

    

 
 
Specialist Implications Officer(s)  Not applicable  
 

Wards Affected:   All  

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Carbon and Resource Smart Management Plan 2015–2019 
 
Annex 
 
Annex A:  List of carbon and resource smart projects already completed 

Page 10



Annex A 
 

 List of carbon and resource smart projects already completed: 
 

 Projects  Year 

Dringhouses Primary Partial 
refurbishment / 
kitchen / rewire / 
roofing 

LED including new 
fitting 

2017 

Tang hall Primary Partial Electrical 
Rewire  

LED including new 
fitting 

2016 

Huntington 
Secondary School 

Partial Electrical 
Rewire  

LED including new 
fitting Saving 18483 
kWh. 

2014 to 
present 

Rufforth Primary LED lighting 
upgrade 

LED including new 
fitting 

2017 

Woolnough House, LED lighting 
upgrade 

LED including new 
fitting 

2016 

Morrell House ` LED including new 
fitting 

2016 

Knavesmire Football / 
Hamilton Panthers 
Changing Room 

New Build New build 100% 
LED 

2015 

Mansion House - 
Opening Doors 

Refurbishment New mechanical 
and electrical 
installation.  
90% LED 

2017 

Woodthorpe School Refurbishment Refurbished now 
50% LED installed 

2016/17 

Fulford School New Classrooms 
(Newton);  New 
Sports Hall; Partial 
Refurbishment  

Air source heat 
pumps installed to 
Newton and Sports 
Hall.  
LED Lighting 100% 
to Newton, Sports 
and 50% Hawkins 

2015/16/
17 
phases 

30 Clarence Street 
(Former Sycamore 
House) 

Refurbishment Ground Floor (60% 
of site is LED) 

2016/17 

Glen Lodge Extension  LED 33% of site  2017 

Knavesmire Primary 
School 

Extension and 
Refurbishment 

40% of site LED 2014/15 

Carr Junior School Replace heating 
mains 

Asset Renewal 2017 

Page 11



Annex A 
 

Carr Junior School Roofing Works  Asset Renewal 
Upgraded to latest 
standard 

2016 

Carr Junior School Roofing Works 
Phase 2 

Asset Renewal 
Upgraded to latest 
standard 

2016 

Clifton Green Primary 
School 

Boiler replacement Only small boiler 
changed for more 
energy efficient 

2017 

Copmanthorpe 
Primary School 

Replace DHW 
Cylinders 

More efficient point 
of use installed 

2017 

Crematorium Boiler replacement Boilers changed for 
more energy 
efficient 

2017 

Naburn Primary 
School 

Boiler replacement Installed more 
efficient boiler 
installed 

2017 

St Pauls Nursery Boiler replacement Asset Renewal 2017 

Ralph Butterfield 
Primary 

Boiler replacement Asset Renewal 2017 

Ralph Butterfield 
Primary 

Roof Works (Phase 
3) 

Asset Renewal 2017 

Rufforth Primary 
School 

Emergency Lighting 
and Small Power 

Asset Renewal 2017 

Stockton on Forest 
Primary School 

Roofing Works and 
Window 
Replacement 

Asset Renewal 2017 

York High School Roofing Works 
(Phase 3) 

Asset Renewal 2017 

 

Page 12


	Agenda
	3 Corporate Energy and Environmental Activity Update
	Annex A


